
City of Seattle Request for Proposal # CTR-PNS-0215 
Addendum #2 

March 5, 2015 

The following is additional information regarding Request for Proposal # CTR-PNS-0215, titled Seattle 

Center Program and Novelty Sales Concessions, released on 2/13/2015.  The questions and answers 

below came in by phone and/or email after the pre-proposal conference. The due date and time for 

Proposals remains March 13, 2015; 4:00PM (Pacific).  This addendum is hereby made part of the RFP 

and therefore, the information contained herein shall be taken into consideration when preparing and 

submitting a proposal. 

Vendor Question City Answer 

Can a proposer submit a Letter of 
Commitment for a Letter of Credit, and 
then, if awarded the Concession 
Agreement, submit a qualifying Contract 
Bond, instead of a Letter of Credit? 

Yes, provided however, that either a qualifying Letter of 
Credit or a qualifying Bond is submitted at the time the 
Contract is signed and returned to the City. 

Question sought clarification of the 
following statement in the RFP (pg 2): 
“…Seattle Center… may also exempt up to 
two additional events in the KeyArena 
during each calendar year…” 

This clause is intended to give Seattle Center flexibility in 
responding to requests which may arise from Clients 
regarding programs and novelty sales.  We do not 
anticipate that this exemption will be used very 
frequently. 

Can a proposal include additional services 
that a proposer can provide, in addition to 
those specifically requested in the RFP?   

Yes, While the specific scope of the services requested 
are detailed in the RFP, if your company can offer 
complimentary services, you may include these in your 
proposal. 

Is there parking on-site for the manager 
and the sales staff? 

No parking is provided for manager or sales staff. The 
secured South Lot of the KeyArena is available for 
load/unload only.  Monthly or daily parking is available at 
the City-owned garage across the street from the venue, 
and there is ample parking on streets and private lots in 
the neighborhood surrounding the venue. 

Who is the food concessionaire? Levy Restaurants. 

Question sought clarification of the 
following statement in the RFP (pg 6):  
“…the Concessionaire, from time to time, 
may be asked to modify its financial 
understandings with the City….” 

This clause is intended to give Seattle Center flexibility in 
responding to request which may arise from Clients 
regarding percentage splits on programs and novelty 
sales.  We do not anticipate that this exemption will be 
used very frequently. 

The RFP refers to an Event Manager and 
a Project Manager.  Are these the same 
person? 

The Event Manager is the person who coordinates the 
needs of the event and is one of a team of Event 
Managers that the Merchandise Sales Team would 
report to on-site during an event.  The Project Manager is 
someone with responsibilities that may not include event 
operations. These could be, but are not necessarily, the 
same person. 

Can photos of sales stands that the 
proposer has built and used in other 
venues be submitted in lieu of schematic 
drawings? 

Yes.  Proposers should be aware that final design of any 
upgrade or replacement of existing sales stands is 
subject to Seattle Center approval. 

Can any new sales stands be stored in the 
same place as the existing stands (those 
depicted in Addendum #1) are stored? 

Yes, assuming the new stands fit in this location. 

Is there a secure area from which to work 
and store cash and inventory during 
events? 

Yes, there is a secure room behind the permanent sales 
location. 

What was the deal with the previous merch 
vendor when the artist/venue split was 
80/20? 

At 80/20, the City retained 12.5% and the concessionaire 
retained 7.5%. 


